
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROGRAM MINUTES 

July 23, 2013 

 

 

APPROVED: 

8/20/13__jrl________________ 

 

AGENDA: 2014 CIP WORKSHOP  

 

ATTENDING: Steve Favorite (Acting Chairman), John Bianchi, David Hill, Joe   

  Lukeman, Don Milbrand, Dan Paradis  

   

ABSENT: Murray Campbell (ill) 

 

OTHER: Janet Cote & Betsy Schneider (Selectmen).  Bill Cote, Dave Carr,  

  Kerrin Rounds (Chairman), & Ernie Richards (Budget Committee) 

 

Meeting opened at 7:00 p.m.  

 

Mr. Favorite explained how the CIP works:  The committee is under the Planning Board 

and per an RSA.  They are to put together recommendations for all of the town’s 

equipment with a cost of $10,000 or higher.  The committee visits each Department, 

requires that the Departments submit Request Forms for all of the equipment that meets 

this criteria, and speaks with them again if any questions still need answering. 

 

Mr. Favorite went on to say that when an item is not purchased as the committee 

recommends, the piece of equipment must be stretched out beyond its’ expected shelf 

life.  The committee tries to determine ahead of time, with the Department Head, if a 

piece can be stretched or is it needed now.  One missing piece is the maintenance of the 

municipal buildings. He added that Murray Campbell (CIP Chairman) has been strongly 

behind the CIP.  The committee has to decide how to recommend how each item is paid 

for. 

 

Mr. Favorite then stated that the CIP committee needs feed-back from the Budget 

Committee:  how they came to their choices to be purchased, how can we help the 

Budget Committee and keep the town going.  The committee presented 11 items last year 

and only 1 was purchased (the Police Cruiser).   

 

365 days is needed to order a Fire Truck.  Engine 4 is running the risk of the pumper not 

working or that the pumper will not shut off.  This is a concern.  Also, Police radio 

equipment changes.  Mr. Favorite has spoken to folks in several towns (such as 

Londonderry, Sunapee, Canaan) about how they handle their CIP and most use Capital 

Reserve accounts. 

 

 

 



-2- 

CIP Minutes 

7/23/13 

 

Mr. Paradis added that the purpose of the CIP is to level off capital expenditures.  The 

CIP committee has just 3 options for purchase:  to purchase outright, Capital Reserve 

accounts, and to bond.  We feel that we need to discuss Capital Reserve accounts which 

the Budget Committee has not been in favor of in the past.  We are not trying to power 

play but to help the town.    

 

Mr. Hill stated that it does not seem that they want to borrow money either.  Mr. Cote 

stated that last year they borrowed for the Library and for the Downtown Square 

Water/Sewer project.  Ms. Rounds added that the Budget committee went with the 

Selectmen’s recommendation.  She thought that maybe the CIP committee should come 

back in to the Budget Committee after the Selectmen bring in their recommendations. 

Mr. Paradis thought that was a good suggestion as we would like to know why things are 

not being purchased.  Ms. Rounds added that some things we think would be better as a 

warrant article versus the operating budget. 

 

Mr. Favorite stated that now there is also lease-purchase and grant-purchase (such as the 

Downtown TE grant).  He went on to say that the Department Heads present to the 

Selectmen but they don’t want to lose their jobs so may down-play some needs.  The 

committee explained that the first year of the CIP will hurt but then it will level off.  It 

was expressed that we need to think of revenues such as trying to keep businesses 

downtown.  It is also hard to get young people on committees.  We only have 4 people to 

plow the town and it is tough when equipment breaks down.  The sidewalk plow was 

mentioned. 

 

Mr. Carr stated that a problem for the Budget committee is that the operating budget 

increases so that there is no room left for CIP.  Mr. Bianchi stated that the Departments 

have equipment that needs replacing.  With Engine 4, the motor is still in tact at the 

moment but it is 34 years old.  When it was 14 years old, the universal joint had to be 

repaired as it was spitting oil.  Now all kinds of things are going wrong.  The Fire 

Department brings in $300,000 a year and we can’t use any to replace the equipment. 

 

Mr. Paradis mentioned that another problem is that, if we do not have a Capital Reserve 

account for something and a good used one becomes available, we do not have funds to 

take advantage of it.  Mr. Favorite added that Canaan does Capital Reserve accounts (he 

understands that Michael Capone was instrumental in doing this).  Mark Bucklin had the 

opportunity recently to get a good used item but had no funds to do so. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



-3- 

CIP Minutes 

7/23/13 

 

Mr. Hill asked for any feed-back/suggestions from the Budget committee.  Mr. Cote 

asked if Engine 4 is the first responder.  Mr. Bianchi stated that Engine 2 goes out first; it 

is the attack truck.  Next is the Ladder truck and then Engine 4.  Engine 4 has the largest 

capacity of water.  Mr. Cote asked how often the Ladder truck is used.  Mr. Bianchi 

estimated about 5 times a year.  It is used more for emergency situations.  Mr. Cote then 

asked what Engine 4 is to be replaced with price-wise.  Mr. Biaqnchi stated that the price 

to replace what is there now is about equal to a Ladder truck.        

 

Mr. Cote mentioned the cruisers and Ms. Schneider stated that the actual purchase is 

lower than what they tell the CIP committee.  Mr. Carr did say that the Police are the only 

ones who keep hours and mileage history of their equipment.  Mr. Lukeman stated that it 

is not only maintenance that points to a purchase but sometimes it is liability.Mr. Bianchi 

added that the equipment needs to be reliable.  Ms. Schneider said that they need to know 

that.  Mr. Paradis said that they had to do a complete wiring harness a year ago.  Mr. Hill 

stated that our concern is age; if it is old, we don’t want to spend more money on it than 

what it is worth.   

 

Ms. Schneider questioned why the towns around aren’t required to do what we have to.  

The CIP committee answered that they feel that the other towns depend on Bristol.  It 

was felt that we need to have the other towns chip in on cost then. 

 

Mr. Bianchi feels that it would help if the Budget committee members would meet with 

the Department Heads as the CIP committee does.  He also expressed his surprise that the 

Fire Chief has not submitted his records of the equipment as he does keep them.  Mr. 

Richards stated that he understands preventative maintenance (such as oil, etc.) but he 

wonders why they don’t recognize symptoms ahead of time.  Ms. Schneider said that she 

is not sure that that is part of the maintenance plan.  Mr. Hill felt that some items are just 

too old.  Mr. Lukeman added that some problems come with a bad design and he cited 

Engine 4 which twists when loaded with water due to the weight. 

 

Ms. Rounds stated that she feels that they need more documentation: repairs and costs 

versus costs of new, maybe add the risks if the item is not purchased, and also other 

options. 

 

Mr. Hill asked what the CIP committee should do if we determine that Engine 4 is 

critical.  Do we suggest bonding, Capital Reserve?  It should have been ordered by now. 

Ms. Cote stated that she has spoken with Chief Yannuzzi and he had scheduled its 

replacement for 2015 and she feels this is an opportunity to take a percentage of the Fire 

revenues.  It is not a wish list but a needs list with documentation that is needed.   

 

 

 



-4- 

CIP Minutes 

7/23/13 

 

Mr. Lukeman compared this to a non-critical item like the vacuum truck (which was 

bought used).  Mr. Carr stated that it is more expensive than the amount of work that it 

does.  Ms. Cote said that we do rent it out but there is also wear and tear that needs to be 

factored in.  Ms. Schneider thought that we might sublet this work.  Ms. Rounds stated 

that this is what she meant by alternatives.  Mr. Paradis clarified by saying it could be 

rented or sublet, etc.  

 

Mr. Favorite brought up the Transfer Station changes.  He stated that this has been in 

progress for 20 years.  The design work has been done and is ready to go.  We also had a 

design for the beach at the foot of the lake that includes drainage issures. 

 

Mr. Cote mentioned the Police Station and where would the town offices go.  Mr. Hill 

stated that, for now, they are willing to get by with just the addition that’s needed.  Mr. 

Paradis added that eventually they would take over the whole building.  Mr. Cote stated 

that this is all great but it adds about 2 million dollars a year.  Mr. Hill stated that other 

towns bring their arrests here for holding, when it was asked about other towns.  Mr. Carr 

said that we are having trouble getting the operating budget under control.   

 

Mr. Hill brought up the 6-wheel dump truck, stating that it is a year overdue for 

replacement now and Mr. Bucklin is having trouble with it.  It is one of three of these 

trucks.  Ms. Schneider asked how many repairs have been done and added that they need 

documentation.  Mr. Milbrand felt that the emphasis is on the operating budget and barely 

anything on CIP.  Ms. Cote stated that the Downtown project took priority last year and 

that the Police cruiser is in the operating budget.  Ms. Rounds stated that it seems as if the 

Department Heads are looking for the CIP committee to fight for them.  The CIP needs to 

get more documentation.  Ms. Cote added that the CIP needs to look at budget spending.  

Mr. Lukeman stated that the issue is that, in the middle of a snowstorm, there is no back-

up.  It is not so much the money spent for repairs as the liability. 

 

Mr. Hill mentioned that we spent $16,000 on the backhoe and a couple of months later it 

gave out.  Mr. Richards stated that new models can break down also; they need a history. 

 

Mr. Hill brought up the sand shed need.  Mr. Favorite stated that Mr. Bucklin is looking 

into a canopy-type for the salt and sand.  He is waiting to hear what the quote is for the 

canopy.  Ms. Round stated that they need to say what they will spend on the canopy and 

then give documentation of what would be moved later. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



-5- 

CIP Minutes 

7/23/13 

 

Mr. Hill said that sidewalks were the CIP committee’s suggestion.  Ms. Rounds would 

like to see that as a warrant article along with a replacement plan.  Mr. Milbrand stated 

that Mr. Bucklin has a sidewalk plan already.  Mr. Cote asked if, other than downtown, 

have any sidewalks been replaced.  He was told that, other than Safe Routes to School, 

there have not been.  Mr. Hill said that the Kaboda breaks down a lot and has been 

patched up.  Mr. Cote asked if the State has to get involved for the sidewalks along the 

State routes.  He was told that they do.  He then asked if the others are up to us and was 

told that they are.   Mr. Paradis stated that the replacement that Mr. Bucklin wants is well 

over $100,000.  The Budget members felt that the Kaboda would be okay.  Mr. Cote felt 

that he bought too small previously.  Mr. Richards stated that he could get a good tractor 

for $30,000 - $50,000 that would be a front end snowblower and a backhoe plus other 

attachments.  Mr. Richards used to have a John Deere dealership).  Ms. Rounds stated 

that, in Portland Me. Folks shovel their own sidewalks.  Mr. Richards asked how many 

do we have and was told 3.2 miles and all are town responsibility.  We also plow out the 

Elementary School, Mr. Favorite said.  Mr. Milbrand added that each town takes care of 

their Elementary schools. 

 

Mr. Hill then brought up the new 4-door pick-up and explained that it is to eliminate the 

use of personal vehicles.  Ms. Cote added that it will also help with forestry.  The town 

car is supposed to be for meetings/travel.  Ms. Schneider feels that this is one of the least 

needed items.  Ms. Rounds thought that it is also to carry cones, etc.   

 

Mr. Favorite mentioned the town generator next.  Mr. Hill explained that the Fire Dept. 

got a portable one but it cannot be used in both the Fire Dept. and the Town Office/Police 

Dept. at the same time.  Mr. Milbrand stated that the cost here goes with a 50% grant.  

Ms. Rounds stated that they need to look at what it will cost down the road.  Mr. Carr 

said that they assume that the cost shown is the 100% cost.  Mr. Milbrand stated that the 

whole cost has to be appropriated first and then reimbursed by the grant.  Ms. Schneider 

mentioned that they were told that there is a mandatory date for changing over the radios 

but no date has been set as yet.   

 

As to the Master Plan, Mr. Paradis stated that an update is overdue.  The Planning Board 

is working with LRPC but the Board is short so it will probably take a couple of years.  

We would like to add a chapter on the town facilities.  Ms. Rounds said that she would 

love to see the new chapter done.  Mr. Paradis added that the Board tried to update at 

least a chapter each year but have had too much other stuff to do. 

 

Mr. Favorite brought up the Recreation Path.  Mr. Hill stated that the snowmobile club 

has offered to help and to maintain it.  It is the path to be established from Water Street, 

down to the old railroad station and on to meet the one in Hill (by Profile Falls). 

 

 



-6- 

CIP Minutes 

7/23/13 

 

Mr. Favorite explained that the Building Maintenance Fund was established with some 

money in it and was meant to be replenished each year that it was used.  Ms. Rounds 

asked if this is a Capital Reserve or in the operating budget.  Mr. Hill thought it should be 

Capital Reserve.  There was a Fund balance that was used to purchase the Millstream 

property.  He asked how much is in it and couldn’t we put it in to get Engine 4 replaced.  

Mr. Milbrand stated that we could.  Ms. Rounds stated that there is a percentage that 

DRA sets the amount.  Mr. Milbrand said that it could be used to adjust taxes, also.  

When using, it can create a problem with cash flow.  He cited an error made a couple of 

years ago which dropped the tax rate but then had to be adjusted the next year, making it 

look like we had a sharp increase.  Ms. Rounds stated that it is good for a levelized tax 

rate.  Ms. Cote added that the amount changes every year. 

 

Mr. Favorite stated that it has been good to discuss these needs.  He added that 7 or 8 

years ago, we backed off for the school budget but it never came down.  He said that the 

CIP committee will “bark” at the Dept. Heads as the Budget members have asked and we 

shall need input from the Budget committee.  He thanked the members and Selectmen 

who came in tonight.  Ms. Rounds asked that the CIP committee give Murray Campbell 

their regards.  Mr. Favorite stated that Mr. Campbell answered the phone today and he is 

progressing very well.     

 

Mr. Bianchi then told the CIP committee that he will see Chief Yannuzzi tomorrow about 

the history of repairs, costs, etc.  The committee then discussed Capital Reserve accounts.  

Again, Mr. Bianchi mentioned the $320,000 that the Fire Dept. had to put into the 

General Fund.  The Water/Sewer is an Enterprise fund and can use their revenues.  Mr. 

Hill asked if Engine 4 could be replaced with just a tanker truck.  Mr. Bianchi answered 

that ISO says that we should have 4 pumper trucks for the size of our town. 

 

MINUTES OF JULY 16, 2013:  J. Bianchi made a motion, second by J. Lukeman, to 

approve the minutes as written.  The motion carried with one abstention. 

 

Mr. Favorite thanked the committee and felt that this meeting was a good one.  He then 

told them that he will be leaving on 7/29/13 for at least 90 days (for FEMA).  After 

discussion, Dave Hill was elected to Chair.   

 

Mr. Lukeman stated that he will get the form from Mr. Campbell and will try to revise it 

to meet the Budget committee recommendations.  He will then e-mail it to everyone for 

discussion at our next meeting. 

 

Mr. Hill said that he will try to get the Fire and Police Chiefs in for our Aug. 20
th

 meeting 

and the Highway Superintendent for Aug. 27
th

.  We will need to fine tune the numbers. 

 

 



-7- 

CIP Minutes 

7/23/13 

 

Mr. Lukeman questioned if the town collects on insurance when an accident happens.  He 

cited a time when a guard rail was taken down and M4r. Bucklin replaced it at our cost. 

 

With no other business, D. Milbrand made a motion, second by J. Bianchi, to adjourn at 

9:40 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Jan Laferriere, recording secretary 

 

  


